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893~1lt. _: 
1. The Appeals Chamber of the International Criminal Tribunal for the Prosecution of Persons 

Responsible for Genocide and Other Serious Violations of International Humanitarian Law 

Committed i.n the Tenitory of Rwanda and Rwandan Citizens Responsible for Genocide and 0ther 

Such Violations Committed in the Teni.tory ofNeighbowing States, Between 1 January 1994 and 

31 December 1994 ("Appeals Chamber" and "Tribunal", respectively) is seized of! ... •, ._. . . 

- "Appellant Hassan Ngeze's Motion to Order The Prosecutor to Disclose Material and/or 
Statement/s of Witness EB Which Might Have Come in his Possession Subsequent to the 
Presentation of Forensic Expert's Report on Witness EB's Recanted Statement [sic]", filed 
confidentially by Hassan Ngeze ('"Appellanf') on 19 June 2006 ("Motion of 19 June 2006'~. 
in which the Appellant requests the Appeals Chamber to order the Prosecutor to. disclose 
material connected with the investigations · conducted by the Special Counsel to the 
Prosecutor in relation with the alleged perjury committed by Witness EB; 1 

. · . 

- "Appellant Hassan Ngeze's Urgent Motion for Leave to Present Additional Evidence 
(Rule 115) of Witness ABCI as per Prosecutor' s Disclosure of Transcript of ·Defence 
Witness ABCl 's Testimony in The Prosecutor v. Bagosora et al, Filed on 221111 J~e 2006 
Pursuant to Rule 75(F)(ii) and Rule 68 of the Rulc:s of Procedure and Evidence", filed 
confidentially by the Appellant on 4 July 2006 ("Motion of 4 July 2006"). in which he 
requests the Ap~als Chamber to admit into evidence the testimony of Defense W.i~ess 
ABC 1 given before the Tribunal on 13 Juno 2006 in The Prosecutor v. Bagosora et al.,: Case 
No. ICTR-98-41-T ("Bagosora e1 al. case") and to call [the witness] to testify in the present 
case/ 

- ·"Appellant Hassan Ngeze's in Person Urgent Motion for Leave to Present Additional 
Evidence (Rule 115) of Witness EB as per Prosecutor's Disclosure Filed on 20th June 2006 
of the Relevant Pages of the Gaea.ca Records Book Given Before the Gacaca on 
[REDACTED]", filed confidentially by the Appellant on 14 July 2006 ("Motion of 14-July 
2006"),3 in which he seeks admission into evidence of the testimony of Witness EB given 
before the Gacaca on (REDACTED]; 

1 See also Prosecutor's Response to "Appellant Hassan Ngeze's Motion to Order The Pro.iecutor to Disr:lose M~terial 
and/or Statement/s of Witmlss EB Which Might Have Come in his Possession Subsequent to the Preseni;ation. of 
Forensic Expert's Repon on Wimess EB'$ Recanted Statement", 26 June 2006 (''Response to the Motion o~ 1'9 June 
2006") and Appellant Hassan Ngeze's Reply to the Prosecutor's Response to "Appellant Hassan Ngeze's ~oti~Jl' to 
Order The Prose<:utor to Disclose Material and/or Statements of Witness EB Which Might Have Come · Ill liis 
Poi-5e3Sion Subsequent to the Presentation of Forensic Expert's Report on Witness EB's Recanted Statement",.l!).June 
2006 ("Reply to the Response to the Motion of 19 June 2006j. 
2 See a&o Prosecutor's Response to ''Appellant li~Hn Ngeze's Urgent Motioo for Leave t.o Present Addi,tiona.l 
Evidence (Rule 115) of Witness A'BCl as per Prosa:utor's Disclosure of Transcript of Defence Witness ABCI 's 
Testiµiony in The Prosecutor v. Bagosora et al. Filed o.o 22114 June 2006 Purs\lallt to Rule 7.5(F)(ii) and Rule 68 ~f the 
Rules of Procedure and Evidence", tiled confldentially on 13 July 2006 ("Response to the Motion of 4 July 2006") llJl.d 
Reply to the ProseC1,1tor's Response m "the Appellant Hassan N~e•s Urgent Motion for Leave to Present Additional 
Evidence (Rule Il.5) of Wimess ABCl as per Prosecutor's Disclosure of Transcript of Defence Witness ABC l's 
Testimony in The Prosecutor v. Bagosora et al. Filed on 22n4 June 2006 Punwmt to Rule 7S(F)(ii) and Rule 6S p{tbe 
Rules of Procedure and Evidence", filed confidentially 01\ 20 July 2006 ("Ri;ply to the Response to the Motion of 4 luly 
2006"). The Appeals Chamber notes that the Response to the Motion of 4 July 2006 was served on the Appellant's 
Counsel by bmd-delive:ry on 17 July 2006. Thete.fore, the Appeals Chamber considers the Reply t.o the Response to' the 
Motion of 4 July 2006 to be filed timely. 
3 This Motion bad initially been filed by the Appellant in person on 3 July 2006 but was n:tumed to him as ~ficiently 
filed in light of the Order Concerning Filings by Ha9san Ngezc dated 24 May 2004- and Order to the Registrar dated 26 
November 2004. On 14 Jn\y 2006, the said Motion was forwarded to the Appeals Chamber by the Appellant'S.COUD!.el. 
On 21 September 2006, following the Appeals Chamber's Decision on Hassan Ngeze's Motions Cortceming Restrictive 
Measures of Oetemion ot 20 September 2006, the Appellant's Counsel requested the Registrar (with copy··!o ~ 
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- "Appellant Hassan Ngeze's Urgent Motion for Leave to Present Further Additional 
Evidence (Rule 115) of Witness EB", fl.led confidentially by the Appellant on 28 August 
2006 ("Motion of 28 August 2006j, in which he requests the Appeals Chamber to admit 
1n o ev1 ry ng s 
recanted statement of 5111 April 2005"; 

- "Prosecutor's Motion Pursuant to Rule 115 to Admit the Envelopes in Which Copies of 
the Letter Purporting to Be a Statement From Witness EB Were Received,,, :file<.i 
confidentially by the Prosecutor on 7 September 2006 ("Motion of 7 September 2006"), 'in 
which the Prosecution seeks admission of the envelopes in which copies of the alleged 
recantation statement of Witness EB were received by the Office of the Prosec~tor .'a~ 

I. PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND 

2. Trial Chamber I of the Tribunal ("Trial Chamber') rendered its Judgement in this case oq 3 

December 2003.5 The Appellant filed his Notice of Appeal on 9 February 2004,6 amended on 9 
' . ' 

Ma 2005,7 and the A ellant's Brief on 2 Ma 2005.8 The Prosecution filed its Res ndent's Brief 

on 22 November 2005.9 The Appellant replied on 15 December 2005. 10 

3. By its Decision of 23 February 2006, 11 the Appeals Chamber admitted as additional ,, 

evidence on appeal handwritten and typed copies of Witness EB's pUiported recantation statement 
:~. ~ - '. : .. ~ 

dated April 2005 ("Recantation Statement")12 and the Forensic Report of Mr. Antipas Nyanjw~ .. ~ 

Presiding Judge in the present case) to "'treat all tilings of Hassan Ngcze' s MDtion in person and f~ed .by 
[Counsel] as having been withdfawo". On ZS September 2006, ttie Registrax requested the Appellant's Counsel to 
address to the Registrar and the Appeah Chamber a precise list of t110tions that he wishes to withdvtw. Up to date,.no 
commi:,nication in mis regard bas been received from the Appellant•s Counsel In these circumstances and in light of the 
Practice Direction on Withdrawal of Pleadings, the Appeals Chamber considers the Motion of 14 July 2006 withdrawn. 

Withdraw Appeal Regarding the Pleading of Joint Cru:niDal Entexprue in a CoWlt of Complicity in Genocide, 125 
AuilJst 2006, para. 4, and Prosecuror "· A.toys Sunba, Case No. ICTR-01-76-A. Notice on Prosecutor's Motion 
Withdrawing Motion Regarding Confidential FiJihgi, 17 May 2006, p. 2). · · · 
4 See Prosecutor's Response to "Appellant Hassan Ngeze's Urge11t Motion for Leave to Present Further A.d:ditional 
Evidence (Rule 11 .S) of Witness EB", filed conftdentially on 7 September 2006 ("Response to the Motion of 28 August 
2006,.). The Appellant has not filed a reply to the Response to the Motion of28 August 2006. , : .• 
., The Prosecutor v. Ferdinand Nahfmana ei al .• Case No. ICTR-99-52-T, Judgement and Sentence, 3 Decembei i003 
("Trial Judgement''). • 
6 Defence Notice of Appeal (Pursuant to 108 of the Rules of Procedure and Evidence), 9 February 2004. 
7 

• Confidential Appellant's Brief (Pursuam' to Rule 11 l ~fthe Rules of Procedure and Evidence), 2 M~y 2005. 
9 Consolidated Respondent's Brief, 22 November 2005. . 
10 Appellant Hassan N,eze's Reply Brief (Article 113 of the Rules of Procedures and Evidence), 15 December 2005. 
11 Ct:mfidential Decision on Appellant Naeze's Six Motions fot" Admission of Additional Evidence on Appeal and/or 
Further Tnvestiiation at the Appe.11 Sia&e, 23 February 2006 ("Ng~e Decision on Additional Evidence:"). -
u Ngeze Decision On Additional Evidence, para. 29; Confidential Decisfon on the Prosecutor's Motion foi- an Order and 
Directives in Relation to Evidentiary Hearini on Appeal Pursuant to Rule 115, 14 June 2006 ("OecisiOll of 14 June 
2006"), p. 3. . 
13 Report of the Forensic Document Examiner, lnspectot Antipas Nyanjwa, datad 20 June 2005, Annex 4 to .the . . 
Additional Evidence (Rule l lS) of Wimess EB'n, tiled confidentially on 7 July 2005 (=Forensic Report"). See Nge:e 
Decision on Additional Evidence, para. 41 . · 
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115 of the Rules of Procedure and Evidence of the Tribunal ("Rules"), and ordered that Witness EB 

be heard by the Appeals Chamber, pursuant to Rules 98 and 107 of the Rules.14 

4. On 14 June 2006, the Appeals Chamber dismissed the Prosecution's request for an order to 

the Appdlant to produce the original handwritten and typed versions of Witness EB's pmported 

Recantation Statement, and ordered Witness EB to appear, as a witness of the Appeals Chamber, at 

an evidentiary hearing, pursuant to Rule 115 of the R.tlles.15 By the same decision, the Appeals 

Chamber modified the protective :measures applicable to Witne.ss EB and prohibited the)>arties. 

their agents or any person acting on their behalf from contacting Witness EB, unless ·expressly 
authorized by the Appeals Chamber.16 

5. On 20 June 2006, the Prosecution disclosed extracts from the [REDACTED] Gacaci Record 

Book, dated [REDACTED], which it asserts to be relevant to Witness EB' s testimony.1: Toe 

Appeals Chamber recalls that this material cannot currently be considered as tendered into evidence 

and will therefore not address its contents at the present stage. 18 On 22 June 2006, pursuant to Rules 

75 (F)(ii) and 68 of the Rules, the Prosecution disclosed the transcript of Witness ABCI 's 

testimony in the Bagosora et al. case dated 13 June 2006.19 

6. On 3 August 2006, the Prosecution informed the Appellant and the Appeals Chamber,tb.at.it . . .. . 
received, on 6 July 2006, a copy of the statement purportedly written by Witness EB dated: ~S. or~l6 

December [year illegible] "affirming his earlier recanted statement'' ("Additional Statement").20 

The copy of the said document (in Kinyarwanda with a translation into French) was transmitted by 

the Prosecution to the Appellant on 17 August 2006.21 The English translation was transmitted to 

the Appellant on 22 August 2006.21 

7. On 13 September 2006, the Appellant requested the Prose<;ution to transmit to him .the 

transcript of Witness WFPl O [DW20] testimony in The Prosecutor v. Casimir Bizimungu et al., 

Case No. ICTR-99-50-T (:'Bizimungu et al. case") dated 1 through 4 September 2006, partly given 

in closed session, which, in the Appellant's belief, ••contains exculpatory evidence and is relevant to 

14 Ngeze Decision on. Additional Evidence, para. 81 . 
u Decision of 14 JW1e 2006, p. 5. 
Id Ibid., p. 6. 
17 [REDACrED). 
11 See supra, at footnote 3. 
1' D isclosur~ of Tn:mscript of Defe:D.Ce Witness ABCl's Testimony In the Prosecutor v • .Bago.1ora et al. Pl.lniuant to 
Rule 75(F)(ii) and Rule 68 of the Rules o!Procedure and Eviden~e, filed confi.dentia.U.y on 22 June 2006 ("Di5closure of 
n~w~ . : 
io Request for a Further Extension of the Urgerri Resirictiw lMeasures in the Case Prosecutor v. Hassan Nge:ze, 
pursuant to Rule 64 (of the) Rules Cqverlng the Dctentwn of PJrsons Awaiting Trial or Appeal Before the Tribunal or 
Otherwise Detained on the Autlwriry of the Tribunal, filed confidentially 011 3 August 2006. 
21 ld. 
22 Follow up to PTc»ecutor's Response to[ ... ] Cotrespondcnce Dated 15 August 2006 Regarding "Request for Supply 
of Copy of the Statemeot of Witness EB Dated 15111 December 2005" , filed collfldentlally on 22 August 2006. . 
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the evidentiary hearing of the witness EB before the Appeals Chamber".23 On 4 October 2006, the 

Prosecution responded that it was not in a position to accommodate this request because: ·it is too 

general.24 The Prosecution also affirmed that, upon review of both the closed and open session 

transcripts of Witness WFPI0' s testimony in the Bizimungu et al. case, it ((has not found any 

exculpatory material within the meaning of Rule 68(A) of the Rules", specifying that the only 

mention of Witness EB was made in open session and is thus available to the Appellant 25 

II. MOTION OF 19 JUNE 2006 

8. The Appellant requests the Appeals Chamber to order the Prosecution to disclose material 

related to investigations into the alleged perjury committed by Witness EB which may have co!lle 

into its ssession after the filin of the Forensic R ort. 26 The A ellant submits that such material 

is necessary for the preparation of his defence and cross-examination of Witness EB during the 

evidentiary hearing. 27 He suggests that the Appeals Chamber can order the production of additional 

evidence from either party under Rule 98 of the Rules.28 

9. The Prosecution responds that the Motion of 19 June 2006 should be dismissed. F~t, the 

Prosecution contends that it is well aware of its ongoing obligations under Rule 68 of the Rules and 

has acted in full compliance with them, notably by making its Disclosures of 20 and 22 June 2006, 

and will continue to do so.29 Second, it maintains that since the Motion of 19 June 2006 does not 

refer to any specific docu:ment, it amounts to a ' 'fishing expedition". 30 Third, the Prosecution 

submits that any material uncovered by the Special Counsel during her investigation is privileged 

and protected by the provisions of Rule 70 (A) of the Rules and thus, will not be disclosed., except if 

it falls within the scope ofRule 68.31 

10. The Appellant replies that he is not asking for any material relating to the Special Cqunsel's 

report, but for "the material or statement related to the witness EB only", 32 and notes that '~t is not 

clear from the Prosecutor's response as to whether the Prosecutor has got any further statement 

~ Request for the Supply of the Court Testimony of Witnes~ Testifying u:o.da the Pseudo Name WFPl0 (i?w2oi in 
Govcmment 1 Case No. ICTR-99-50-T, Bizi.tm.uigu et at. Given during In September to 4111 Septexnbtir,..2PQ6, .. as 
f}ovided under R.ule 68 (A) IIIld (B) ofthe Rules of Procedure and Evi~ filed c011fidentially on 13 September 2006. 

Response to [ .. . ] "Request for the Supply of; the Couct Testimony of Witness J"estifying under the P.se~\dQ Na~ 
WFPlO (DW20] in Govemmcnt 1 Case No. ICTR-99-50-T, Bizimungu et aL Given during 1n September to 4Lll 
September 2006, as provided UDder Rule 68 (A) and (E) of the Rules of Procedure and Evidence", 4 October .2006, 
rsara. 2. . 

Ibid .• para. 4. 
2'i Motion of 19 June 2006, paras 1, 3. 
21 JbM, para. 4. 
21 Ibid., para. 6. 
29 :Response to lhe Motion of 19 June 2006, para. 3. 
30 ibid., paras 2, 4. 
31 Ibid., para. 6 . 
.12 Reply to the Response to the Motion of19 June'2006, paras 1-2. 
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documents should be disclosed".40 Finally, if an accused wishes to show that the Prosecutidri. is~ 

breach of these obligations, he/she must identify the material sought, present aprimafacie slio~g 

as to its probable exculpatory nature, and pyove the Prosecution's custody or control therc:o'f.41 'Even 

when the Defence satisfies the Chamber that !the Prosecution has failed to comply with its· Rule 6~ 
I • • 

obligations, the Chamber will examine whether the Defence has actually been prejudiced by such 

. b £ .d . h h d .I · 42 failure e ore con.SJ enng w et er a reme y 1s appropnate. · 

I . . 
12. Under Rule 70(A) of the Rules, .. rcpdrts, memoranda, or other internal documents prepared 

I 

by a party, its assistants or representatives in rnnection with the investigation or preparation of the 

case, are not subject to disclosure or notification" under Rules 66 and 67. Pumzant to Rule 70(B). 
I • ·-

with respect to information provided to the Pirosecution on a confidential basis and used ''solely f9r 
I • .. . . 

the purpose of generating new evidence", the Prosecu.tion shall not disclose it to the Defence uritess 

it obtains the consent of the person or entiJ prnviding such information and, in any event. ~annot 

tender it into evidence without prior disclosub to the Defence. ·: _· , 

r ... . , '. 

13. The Appeals Chamber recalls that Of1 7 July 2005, the Prosecution confidentially fi1eq the 

"Prosecutor's Additional Submissions in R~sponsc to 'Appellant Hassan Ngeze's Urgent Motion 

for Leave to Pre-sent Additional Evidence ~ule 115) of Witness EB"', in which it disclosed certain 

results of the investigations with respect io Witness •EB.43 These submfasions were taken in~ 
account by the Appeals Chamber when ~sessing the: prima facie credibility of Witness EB's 
additional evidence. 44 On 7 April 2006, th~ Prosecution specified that, although it was not m· th~ 
position to provide a date for conclusion of ~e investigations, it was taking the necessary m~~~res 
in order to ensure the communication of ~e results as soon as possible.45 The Appeals C~ber 

notes that the Prosecution continually refers to issues related to Witness EB in its submissions 
; •. ' :. 

concerning the restrictive measures applicable to the Appellant, notably "in the coD!ext .of th~ 

ongoing investigations, led by the Special; Counsel to the Prosccutor''.46 It notes, inter alid, that 

such measures are still necessary, "including in light of the reccnt letter, purportedly written by 
I 

witness EB, with multiple copies mailed, from both Rwanda and Tanzania, to three Prosecution's 
I , 

' 39 BraltJ 30 August 2006 Decision, para. 30; Blaskic 26 Septetcbet 2000 Decision, para. 40; Blas/de 29 October .199.7 
Decision. para. 32. ! • 
..a Bralo 30 August 2006 DecisiQll, para. 30; Bla!'ki~ 26 September 2000 Decision. pan. 40. :· . . 
41 Bralo 30 August 2006 Decision., para. 31; Kajelijeli ApPeal Judgement, para. 262; Brdanin 7 December ~0'04 
DeciliiQn, p. 3. ·· · 
41 Bralo 30 August 2006 Decision, p=. 31; Kajelijr:li Appeal Judgement, para. 262; Krsti~ Appeal Judgement, paxa 
153; see also Prosecutor v. Edouard Karemera et al., Case No.,ICTR-9844-T, Oral Decisi<ln on Stay of Pxoeeedings., 
16 'February 2006, pp 4 and 8-9 i · 
4

l [REDACTEDJ, : ~ 
44 Ngeze Decision on Additional E-vidence, para. 20 
,., Stat\lS Conference, T . 7 April 2006, pp 19-20. ; 
46 [REDACTED]. 
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obligations to disclose exculpatory or other relevant material.54 Finally, the Prosecution has 

specified that it did not provide copies of the Additional Statement to the Appellant prior. to bi~ 

request of 15 Au.gust 2006. since the document was at the same time addressed to the AppellaJ:1: ~d 
55 tances althou ts the ellant's 

argument that in the present circumstances he cannot identify with more precision the nature•• of the 

material to which he seeks access, it finds that the Appellant has provided no indication ··of ariy 
' 

failure of the Prosecution to eomply with its disclosur~ obligation. Therefore, for lack of ~denc~ 

to the contrary, the Appeals Chamber consideIS that the Prosecution is acting in good faith.'
6 fu 

light of the above, there is no need for the Appeals ~hamber to order the Prosecution to ~rnply 

with its Rule 68 obligations, since "(o]nly where ~e Defence can satisfy a Chambe~ that the 

Prosecution has failed to discharge its obligations sh?Lll.d an order of the type sought [ .. . ] to be 

contemplated". 57 

16. In addition, while the parties do not refer to Rule 66(B) of the Rules, the Appeals Ch«mbi;:r 

notes that the Appellant's request appears to fall under this provision since he is seeking access to 
documents that would be material to the preparation of his defence with respect to the · cros~­

examination of Witness EB at the evidentiary heaking or might be intended for use· by the 
Prosecuti_on as evidence on that occasion. ~t ha:s alre~y been clarified that Rule 66(B) applies t~ 

a ellate roccedin s and tha: conse uentl the Prosecutio on r uest of the Defence, "has to 

permit the inspection of any material which is capabie of being admitted on appeal or whl~h-me.y 
I 

lead to the discovery of material which is capable o~ being admitted on appeal". 58 In this ~ect, 

the Appeals Chamber recalls that "purely inculpatory/material is not necessarily immaterial for the 

preparation of the Defence)' and that the Prosecution imould instead consider .. (a) whether ~e issues 

to which the material relates are subject of a ground ~f appeal•' or ''(b) whether the material· could 
I , • ' \ • 

reasonably lead to further investigation by the Defence and the discovery of additional evidence 

admissible under Rule 115 of the Rules".59 TherefoJ, the Appeals Chamber proprro mot?# ~r~~ ..... . .. 
the Prosecution to apply the above-mentioned criteria in order to detennine whether it is in 

possession of any documents that are material to the breparation of the Defence, with the exc~ti~~ 

of Rule 70 material as discussed above, and then retbm, if necessary, to the Appeals Chamber for 
permission to withhold any information provided by these sources under Rule 66(C) of the Rule~. · 

,. Disclo,..-e of 20 J.,.. 2006, pan. 4 (tho Appeals Owu!>o, L ""' th, Pmocution dm no1 specify whetho, tbb 
disclosure Willi made under Rule 68 ofche Rules); Disclosure ot/22 1UDc 2006. para. 2 (it ill :me.ntiOllCd in pan. l that the 
disclosure i$ made pur&1.lallt to Rulei 6B and 75(FXii)). ' 
$$ Motion of7 September 2006, para. 13. 

gwr~ ' ' 
Decen1ber 2004 Decision, p. 3; Bla!kic 26 September 2000 Decision, para. 45. 
51 .Bralo 30 August 2006 DecisioJJ, para. 31; Bl~kfc 26 Septemier 2000 Decision. para. 45_ · · 
s, Prosecutor v. Radislav Knti6, Case No. lT-98-33-A, CorifidenriaJ Decision on the Prosecution's Motion to Be 
Relieved of Obligation to Disclose Sensitive Information Puuumt to Rule 66(C), 27 March 2003, p. 4. · · 
$9 Jd. :: . 
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17. Finally, the Appeals Chamber reiterates that, in' compliance with its Decisio-n of 14 June 

2006, not only the parties, but also their agents or any other persons on their behalf, are prohibited 

:from contacting or interfering with Witness EB . 

. ill. ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

A. Applicable Law 

18. Toe Appeals Chamber recalls that according to the jurisprudence of the Tribunal and that of 

the International Criminal Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia ("ICTY''), an appeal pursuant. to 

Article 24 of the Statute of the Tribunal (Article 25 of the Statute of the ICTY) is not a trial de novo 

and is not an opportunity to remedy any "failures or oversights,, by a party during the pre-trial arl~ 

trial phases. 60 

19. Rule 115 of the Rules provides for a corrective measure on appeal, and its purpose is to deal 
• L ~. , 

"with the situation where a party is in possession of material that was not before the court _of fust 

instance and which is additional evidence of a fact or issue litigated at trial".61 According t~ this 

provision, fot additional evidence to be admissible on appeal, the following requirements m~st be 

met. First, the motion to present additional evidence should be filed "not later than thirty days.frolI). 

the date for filing of the brief in reply, unle~s good cause or, after the appeal hearing, cogent reaso~ 

are shown for further delay".61 Second, the Appeals Chamber must find "that the additi6nal 

evidence was not available at trial and is relevant and credible." When determiaing the availability 

at trial, the Appeals Chamber is mindful of the following principles: 

[Tjhc party in qw:stion must show that it sought to make "appropriate use of au mechanisms of 
protection and compulsion available undi::r the Statute and the Rules of the International Tribunal 
to bring evidence [ ... ] before the Trial Chamber.'' In this connection, Counsel is expected to. 
apprise the Trial Chamber- of all the difficulties he or she encounters in obtaining the evidence in 
question. including any problems of intimidation, and his or her inability to locate certa\t\ 
witnesses. The obliiation to apprise the Trial Chambc:r comlitutea not only a first itep in 
eXeTcising due diligc:uce but also a means of self-protection in that non-cooperation of the 
prospeetive wimess is recorded cODtempor.meously.63 ... 

60 Prosecutor v. Jean-Paul Akayesu, Case No. ICTR-91>-4-A, Judgement. 1 June 2001, para.. 177; Decision ori App6ilarit 
Hassan Nge:ze's Motion for the Approval of the Investigation at the AppeaJ Stage. Case No. ICTR-9!>-52-A; f May 
2005 (<'Deci&ion on Investigation''), p. 3; Decuion on JeaD.•Bosco Barayagwiza's Extremely Urgent Motion for Leave 
to Appoint 11n InvestigatoT, Case No. ICTR-99-52-A, 4 October 2005 ("Barayagwu:a Decision of 4 Octobor 2005"), p. 
3; Ngeze Decision on Additional Bviden~, para. 5; Decision on Appellant Hassan Nge:ze's Motion fur A~prov&: of 
Funlwt l11vestizati.oil!I on Specific Information Rclatins to the Additioul Evidence of Potential Witnesses, Case No. 
IcrR-99-S2-A, 20 June 2006 f:Wg~e Decision on Further In.vestigati011B"), para. 4. ·· 
61 Prosecutor v. Zoran Kuprefkic et al., C.ise No. IT-9S-16-A., Decision on the Motiom of Drago Josrpow; Zoran 
K.upre§ldc and V\atko Kupre§klc to Admit Additional Evidence Pursuant to Ruh, 115 and for Judicial Notice to be 
Taken Pur!.uant to Rule 94 (B), 8 May 2001 ("!(upreJkic et al. Decision of 8 May 2001"), para. S; Banyagwiia 
Decision of 4 October 2005, p. 4 ; Ngeze Decision on Additioll31 Evidence, para. 6. · 
61 Rule 115 (A) of the Rules as amended on 10 November 2006. 
Ill Prosecutor v. A.ndrt! Ntagenua, et ar., lCTR.-99,-46-A. Dc:~ision on Prosecution Motion for Adtnission of Additional 
Evidence, 10 December 2004 C'Ntagerura er al. Decision of 10 December 2004'1), para. 9. (internal refercncl!s omitted]. 

. .. 
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With regards to relevance, the Appeals Chamber will consider whether the proposed· evidence 

sought to be achnitted relates to a material issue. & to credibility, the Appeals Chamber wi)l only 

refuse to admit evidence at this stage if "it is devoid of any probative value in relation to a decision 

pursuant to Rule 115''64
, without prejudice to a determination of the weight to be afforded:_~ 

20. Once it bas been determined that the additional evidence meets these eoncliticms~. the 

Appeals Chamber will determine whether the evidence "could have been a decisive· factor: in 

reaching the decision at trial."66 To satisfy this, the evidi:,nce must be such that it could ha~~ 'had an 

impact on the verdict, i.e. it could have shown that a conviction was unsafe.67 Accord,r.gly, the 

additional evidence must be directed at a specific finding of fact related to a conviction or to the 

sentence. 

21. Although Rule 115 of the Rule1> does not explicitly provide for this, the Appeals (;ham~er 

has considered that, where the evidence is relevant and creclible, but was available a.t trial, or could 

have been discovered through the exercise of due diligence, the additional evidence may still be 

admitted if the moving party establishes that the exclusion of the additional evidence wo~iJ amount 

to a miscarriage of justice inasmuch as, had it been adduced at trial, it would have had an :~pict· on 
the verdict. 61 . . - . .. 

22. Finally, the Appeals Chamber recalls that, whether the evidence was available at trial or not, 

the additional evidence must always be assessed in the context of the evidence presented a~ tri~ 

and not in isolation. 69 

64 Prosecutor v. Stanislav Galic, Case No. IT-98-29--A., Decisi;;m on the Fim aJ1d Thiid Rule 115 Motions to P~lmt 
Additional Evidence Before the Appeals Chamber, 30 June 2005 ("Galic 30 June 2005 Decision"), para. 9S; Emmam1el 
Ndindabahizi v. The Prosecurnr, C~e No.1CTR-01-7l·A, Decision on the Admission of Additional Evidence, l 4 A1;1ril 
2005, p. 6; See also ProseclltOr v. Mladen Naletilic & Yin/co Mamnovic, Case No_ IT-98-34-A. Judgement, 3' May 
2006, para. 402; The Prosscutor v. Andre Ntagerura et al., Case No. lCTR-99-46-A, Decision on Prosecutmtt Motton 
for Admission of Additional Evidence, 10 December 2004, para. 22; Geortes Anderson Nderub1U1twe RiaagQ/lda v. The 
P,oseeutor, Case No. ICfR-96-3-A, Judgement, 23 May 2003, para.. 266. · : ·::: ·· · · . . 
6

$ Pl"'Osecutor v. Zoran Kupreslcic et al., Case No. IT-95-16-A, Deci!ion on Motions for the Admission of 4dditional 
Evidence filed by the Appellants Vlatko Kupreskic, Drago Josipovic, Zoran Kuprdkil and Mirjan Kupre§lcil, 
26 Febroary 2001, para. 28; Kuprdkic Appeal Judgement, pan. 63; Prosecutor v. Blaikic, Cue No. I:T-9..5-14-A, 
Decision on Evidence, 31 October 2003 (:'Bl~ktc Decision of 3 1 October 2003"), p. 3; Ngeze Decision on Additiom\l 
Evidence, para. 7; Ngeze Decision on Further lnvestigations, para, j , 
M Rule 115 (B) of the Rules, 
67 Kuprdktc Appeal Judgement, para. 68; Prosecutor v. Radi.slav Krstic, Case No. IT-98-33-A, Decision on Application 
for Admission of Additional Evidence on Appeal, 5 August 2003 ("Krstic Decision of 5 August 2003''), p. 3; Blaikic: 
Decision of 31 October 2003, p. 3; Ngeze Decision on Additional Evidence, para. 8; Ngeze Decisian on Further 
Investigations, para.. 6. 
" Kajelijeli v. ProseetJtor, Case No. ICTR-98-44A-A, Decision on Defence Motion for the Admission of Additional 
Evidcnee PursU11Dt to Rule 1 lS of the Rules of Procedure and Evidence, 23 October 2004 C-Kajelijeli Decision of 28 
October 2004"), para. 11 i Ntagerura et al. Decision of 10 December 2004, para 11; Nge:z.e Decision on Additional 
Evidence, para. 9: Ngeze Decision on further Investigations, para. 7, · 
69 Juvenal Kajelijeli Decision of 28 October 2004, para. 12; Nta.gerura er aL Decision of 10 December 2004, pillll. J2; 
Ngeze Decision on Additional Evidence, para, 10; Nieze Decision on Furthet Investigations, para. See also Blaildc 
D<:cision of31 October 2003, p. 3; Momtr Nikolic v. Proncutor, Case No. IT-02-60/1-A., Decision on Motton to' Admit 
Additional Evidence, 9 December 2004, p11ra. 2s: 

Case No. ICTR-99-52-A 11 27 Novexnber 2006 



04 / 12 ' 06 14:37 FAX 0031705128932 
- - ------ - ------ -- ------·- - - ·- lgio12 

B. Motion of 4 July 2006 

Submissions of the Parties 

23. In his Motion of 4 July 2006, tbe Appellant seeks the admission of evidence from: Witness 

ABCl which, he contends, shows that (i) testimony provided by other Prosecution Witn~i:;_5.es ~as 

false; 70 and (ii) the Appellant was not a party to the killings which occurred on 7 April l~~4. ~ 

Gisenyi.71 The proffered evidenc.e consists of transcripts of Witness ABCl's testimony on p !~e 
2006 in the Bago.sora et al. case, including testimony given in closed session.72 The App('.'l~ a1so 

prays the Appeals Chamber to call the witness to testify in the present case. 73 

24. The Appellant submits that this evidence became available to rum only after the Disclosure 

of 22 June 2006,74 despite the exercise of due diligence.75 He submits that it is relevant to the issue 

relating to his innocence,76 sin.ce it does not implicate him in the killings of7 April 1994 in Gisenyi, 

which is in "complete contradiction" with Witness EB's testimony of 15-17 May 2001.71 Jn 

consequence, according to the Appellant, if accepted. this new evidence will "bell~ the 

prosecution's story narrated by PWs [sic] AGX, Seroshago) and AHI'' and overturn ~e Trial 

Chamber's factual findings at paragraphs 812, 836 and 837 of the TriaJ Judgement,?!~ thus affe~g 
. ' 

the verdict.79 Stressing that the finding of credibility of Witness EB was "based UpoJl false . ' . . 

evidence'', the Appellant avers that the non-admission of Witness ABCl 's testimony will result in'a 

miscarriage ofjustice,80 

25. The Prosecution opposes the Motion of 4 July 2006 and submits that it does not meet the 

threshold criteria for adtnission of additional evidence pursuant to Rule 115 of the Rules.111 First, the 

Prosecution argues that the Appellant has not shown that the material was unavailable at trial It 

contends that Witness ABCl and the Appellant knew each other and the Appellant thus could have 

sought to contact (this person] as a potentially useful witness in support of his alibi defence.82 

Second, the Prosecution maintains that the evidence is not relevant to a material jssue, since 

Witness ABCl only testified [as to not having seen] the Appellant at [Barnabe Samvura's] house'on 

the morning of 7 April 1994, and not about the Appellant's activities outside that house on,thaf day, 

,.~ Motion of 4 July 2006, pull. 5a_ 
11 ll,td., puas 2, 4. [RBDACfED] 
71 Motion of 4 July 2006, pYeliminary para. a. 
73 Ibid.., pteamb1.1laey para_ c. 
74 ll,id, paia.<1 I, 3. 
7s Ibid., para. 10. 
'' ll,id., paxas 10-11. 
n Ibid., paras 2 , 4, foo1note I , with reference to the Bagosora et al. case, T. 13 June 2006, pp 9-14, 16. 
18 Ibtd. , para. 5. 
79 Ibid., pllill. 10. 
80 Ibid., pan. 6, 
11 Response to the Motion of 4 July 2006, paras 2-3. 
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in and around Gisenyi. Bj The Prosecution adds that "whether or not a meeting actually took place is 

not materially relevant to the facts underpinning the Appellant's conviction",84 the material issue, as 

presented by Witness EB, being the fact that the Appellant spoke through a loudspeaker, in the 

street, inciting lnterahamwe to kill Tutsis.55 Third. the Prosecution contests the credioi'lity of 

Witness ABCl and submits that there is evidence in the Bagosora et al, case that contrad~cts __ [~~) 

testimony [provided by this witness].86 Finally, the Prosecution submits that, in any ev.~t, -~-e 

Appellant does not demonstrate that the evidence would or even could have affected the v_erdi~J-1!,t . .. . 

trial.37 It points out that the Appellant does not explain why the Trial Chamber wo~ld ~ha.v~ 

preferred Witness ABC 1 's evidence to that of Witness EB 88 or to that of other witnesses concemi»g 

his participation in the genocide. 89 

26. In bis Reply to the Response to the Motion of 4 July 2006. the Appellant underlines 1hat the 

Prosecution's C(lntention that the proffered evidence is irrelevant contradicts the fact that it was 

disclosed to him under Rule 68 as exculpatory and relevant. 90 He maintains that there is no reason 

to doubt Witness ABCl 's credibility, who is an eyewitness and the · "most natural ~tness to 

describe the nue facts which occurred on 7th April, 1994, at [Samvura's] house",91 He adds 'that any 
reference to the evidence of Witness EB is not appropriate at this stage in light of the upcoming 

evidentiary hearing.92 Finally, the Appellant concludes th.at even ·if another eyewitness' ~itncss 

EB) testimony gave a different version of the incidents of 7 April 1994, Witness ABC l's ·evidence 

"is relevant as in that situation according to the principle of evidence neither of the versionEs] ·could 

be accepted as true". 93 

Discussion 

27. AB a preliminary matter, the Appeals Chamber considers that there is good cause for the late 

filing of the Motion of 4 J~y 2006. Witness ABCl •s testimony in the Bagosora et al. c.tse,:dated 

13 June 2006, was made, in the relevant parts, in closed session. The Prosecution disclosed the . . 
corresponding transcript on 22 June 2006 and the Motion of 4 July 2006 was filed soon qi~. 

The Appeals Chamber therefore recognizes the Motion of 4 July 2006 as timely. 

. - . . ... ' . ,. . 
._. . . . ·-

12 Ibid~. paras 4-6. ·~ ::-
ll Ibid., paras 7-8. Accordillg to the Prosecution, the Appellant's interpretation of the scope of Witness ABCl 's 
testimony is grossly exaggerated and can only 9tand for the proposition that she did not see the Aw~ll.aJll at 
~amVllra's] house duu momine, a fact that has no relevance to the Appellant's conviction. 

Response to the Motion of 4 July 2006, para. 9. 
&S Ibid., para. 10. 
16 lbid., pans 8and11. [REDACTED] 
., RespODSe to the Motion of 4 July 2006, para. 12. 
11 Ibid. , pus. 13. 
19 ibid., pw-a.s 14-lS. 
90 Rc:ply to the Response to the Motion of 4 July 2006, paros 1 md 3. 
sat Ibid., pataS 4-5. . · 
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28. However, with respect to the availability of the proffered evidence at trial, the Appeals 

Chamber agrees with tb.e Prosecution that the Appellant failed to exercise the due diligence required 

for the evidence to be admissible on appeal. The Appeals Chamber recalls that "'the mere fact that [a 

witness) gave evidence in another case and that the Appellant was not aware that [the witness was] 

in possession of this infonnation until then does not in itself suffice to demonstrate una.vail~bility ()f 

the evidence at trial."~ The Appellant must demonstrate that the "proffered evidence ·Zva~ nQt 
~ . . . 

available to him at trial in any form" and that he had made use of all mechanisms of protection anq 

compulsion available under the Statute and the Rules to bring the evidence before the ·.Trial 

Chamber.9s In the present case, the Appellant has not shown why he could not call [Witness ABCl] 

[REDACTED] as a Defence witness at trial in order to refute the evidence provided by Witness EB 

stating that, on the morning of 7 April 1994, h.e saw the Appellant go into the compound ·of 

Samvura's house together with many Interahamwe. Therefore, the Appeals Chamber is not satisfied 

that this evidence was llllaVailable at trial. 

29. As to the relevance and credibility of the proffered evidence, the Appeals Chamber is 

satisfied that the prtma facie requirements have been met. The testimony of Witness ABC,1 in' th~ 

Bagosora et al. case is, on its face, in contradiction with the testimony on the same events giv'~ by 

some of the Prosecution witnesses in the present ca.set and that of Witness EB in particu1~ The 

evidence in question thus appears to have some relevance to the Trial Chamber's findings''.on·tne 
credibility of these witnesses as well as to its factual findings with respect to the Appellaht' s 
participation in the killings that took place in Gisenyi on the morning of 7 April 1994. 96

' Without 

prejudice to the Trial Chamber's findings in the Bagosora et al. case as to the credibility c;,fW'itness 

ABC 1 and considering the fact that the testimony was given under solemn oath, the Appeals 

Chamber is satisfied that the proffered evidence is prima facie rea$onably capable of belief or 

reliance.97 

92 Reply to the Respo11se to the Motion of 4 July 2006, para. 6. 
93 Ibid., para. 7. . :.- ·:. . ~ • . : 
94 Galtc 30 Jun.e 2005 Decision_ para. 115; Krstic Decision of 5 August 2003, p. 3; Pro.secutor v. Radi.rlt:1v Krstic;, C~e 
No. IT-98-33-A, Decision 011 Application for Subpoenas, l July 2003, paras 4-5: "The defence often seeb.to iaiisfy 
tbis requirement by asserting that an attempt had bem llll1de before or during the trial to ascertain from such prospectiye 
witnesses what evidence they co\l.ld give, but that the prospective witnesses bad either failed Of declined to co--operate. 
However, before additional evidence will be admit=d pursuant to llu1e 11S, the defence is obl iged to demomtrare not 
only that the evidence was not available at trial but also that the evidence could not have been discovered through the 
c:xerci$e of due diligeoce { .. . ] . This obligation of due d:ilig~cc is therefore directly relevant to the procedures of the 
Tnounal (in piu,icular, Rule 54) both before and durln£ trial , as well u oo appeal." See auo para. 19 supra. 
)'j Galic 30 lune 2005 Decisk1a, para. l lS; Krstic Decision of 5 .A.ugun 2003, p. 3; Prosecutor v. Radislav Kr:Jti6, Case 
No. IT-98-33-A. Decision on Application for Subpoenas, 1 July 2003, paras 4-S. 
96 Trial Judgement, paras 825 and 836. The Appeals Chamber finds that the proffered evidence is irrelevant to the Trial 
Chamber's conclusions at paru 831 and 837 of the TriaU)ul~eroent. . · 
.,, See The Prosecutor v. Jettn-Paul Akayesu, Case No- ICTR-96-4-A, Judgement, 1 June 2001, par&S 286-287. 

' 
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30. Having found that the evidence of Witness ABCl was available at trial and could have be~n 

discovered at trial through the exercise of due diligence, the Appeals Chamber must determine 

whether the non-admission of the additional evidence would amount to a miscarriage of justice. 

31 . The Appellant claims that Witness ABC 1 's testimony in the Bagosora et al. case would 

have affected the Trial Cham~r• s findings as to the credibility of Prosecution Witnesses AHI, 1:!~.,; 
AGX and Omar Serushago,98 hence calling into question the findings of fact made by~~-~rial 

Chamber concerning the events in Gisenyi on the basis of the evidence given by those wi~sses . 
. . . 

The Appeals Chamber notes that, in the Bagosora et al. case, Witness ABCl expressly a~e4 

that, on the morning of 7 April 1994. there was no meeting held at Samvura' s place and th~t~th~ 

Appellant was not present in [that) house.99 

32. The relevant factual findings of the Trial Chamber in the present case appear to be made on 

the basis of evidence provided by Witness Serushago that the Appellant was transporting weapons 

on the morning of 7 April 1994100 corroborated by the evidence of Witness EB that he saw the 

Appellant "on the morning of 7 April in a red taxi with a loudspeiaker".101 The Trial Chamber also 

took into accowit that Witness Alil saw the Appellant early in the morning that day "in' military 

gear, carrying a gun'' and that Wjtness AGX saw him at around 2:30 p.m. "passing by on·th~ road 
- . . 

in a vehi"cle with Interahamwe and lmpuzamugambi, anned with different kinds of weapons and 

speaking through a megaphone, calling on the public to flush out tho enemy and ~t;:my 

accomplices", 102 Finally, the Trial Chamber noted, on the basis of evidence provided by Witness 

EB, that "[w]eapons were distributed from a central location, Samvura's house, where Witness EB 

saw the Interal:amwe picking them up". 103 On these grounds, the Trial Chamber concluded that 

Hassan Nge.ze ordered the ltert:i!,,a.mwe in Gisenyi on the morning of 7 April 1994 t.o kill Tuilii civ~ 
and prepare for their burial at the Commune Rouge. Many were nllcd in tht: subsequent attacks 1bat 
happened immediately thereafter and later on the ,ame day. ( ... J The attack that resulted in these and 
other killings was planned systematically, wjth wea~ons distnlmted in advance, and anugements 
made for the tnnsport and burial of those to be killed. I 

' . 
The Appeals Chamber notes that the Trial Chamber considered that Omar Serushago's t~~~; 
was not consistently reliable and accepted it "with caution, relying on it only to the extent· that it 

,a Motion of 4 July 2006, patll. 5, rcfemng to Trial Judiemcnt. paru 812, 813, 824, 775. 
99 Bagosora et al. case, T. 13 June 2006, p. 10, 1. 24-32 (closed session 4 REDACfED). 
100 Trial Judgement, para. 825. 
IOI Ibid., pllrll. 825. 
102 ld. 
1ol ld. 

·. -: 

.. · . . 

104 Ibid., para. 836. See also paras 9SS and 977 A concluding that the Appellant was guilty of genocide. pursuant to 
Article 6(1) of the Statute of the Tribunal. 
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[was] corroborated".105 The testimony of Witnesses AHI, AGX and EB was, however, found to be-

credible.tois 

33. Witnesses AHi and AGX did not specifically testify to the fact that there bad been a meeting 

in Samvura•s house on the morning of 7 April 1994, or that the Appellant attended that meeting or 

participated in the distribution of anns that day. 107 Therefore, their testimony and/or credibility 

would not be affected by the evidence provided by Witness ABCl in the Bago.sora et a/; .. case}~8 

However, the Appeals Chamber agrees that the account given by Witness ABCl can be interpret<# 

as contradicting the testimony of Witness EB in the present case, in particular, when he stated that, 

on 7 April 1994, at around 07:00 a.m., he saw the AppeJlant going towards the house of.Barnabe 

Samvura.109 The same morning, he also saw other people go into the compound ofSamvura'·s ~~s~ 

and, thirty minutes later, he heard the Appellant speak through his loudspeaker, telling the 

lntetahamwe to kill the Tutsi and that some of them should go to the Commune Rouge to dig pits. 

According to Witness EB, when coming out of Samvura's house, the Jnterahamwe carried nail­

studded clubs, rifles and grenades, and the attacks started around 01:00 p.m.110 

34. The fact that there had been a meeting held at Samvura's house on the morning of 7 April 

1994 involving the Appellant and distribution of anns is not in itself decisive for thi Tri.ii 

Chamber's conclusion as to the Appellant's responsibility for killings of the Tutsi civ~~ -~ 

Gisenyi. In fact, the Trial Chamber concluded that there was no evidence that the Appeliant ·was 

present during the killings of 7 April 1994111 and that, on that morning, the Appellant ordered the 

Jnterahamwe to kill the Tutsi and to prepare graves in. Commune Rouge.112 Consequently; th-e 

principal issue is whether, should the Trial Cb.amber have had the benefit of hearing the testimony 

of Witness ABCl, it would have disbelieved Witness EB with respect to the events that took place 

105 Ibid., para. 824. See also Ngeze Decision on Additional Evidence, paras 26-27. 
1°' Ibid., paras 775, 813 and 812, respectively. 
,a1 Witness AHi testified that he saw the Appellant on the moI'Jling of 7 April in a military outfit 11.ccompanied by his 
bodyguards (T. 4 September 2001, p. :S l l. 13~17 and p. 69 L 17-25; T. 10 September 2001 , p. 17 1. 18-20 and p. 92 l 
17-22). Wi1ness .AHi refeued to distribution of anns by Colonel Anatole Nsenigyumva ou 7 April 1994, but-,specifild 
that the Appellant was pn:sent at a mt:etingbeldon 8 April 1994 {T. 4 September 2001, p. 58 I. 7-9 and p.601. 11-19); 
Witness AGX saw the Appellant in the afternoon of 7 April 1994 "pilSSing by on the road in a vehicle abciar~ which 
were lnterahamwe as well as lmpuzamugambi of the CDR" (T. 11 June 2001, p. 39; T . 13 J\ll'le 2001, p. 39; T: 14 June 
2001, pp 40-42). . ... ~ - ' · • 
ioa ~ Appeals Chamber notes that Witness ABCl also testified that there was 'llO meeting with Anatole Ns~~a 
held m Samvura's house on 7 April 1994 and no distn'bution of weapons took place there (.Bagosora et al. eue,· t . l.3 
June 2006 (closed session), p. 1 l 1. 34-35, p . 121. 29-31, p. 27 l 16-18 and 26-31). Witness AHi teferred. to iuncetjng 
of MRND and COR official$ held on g April 1994 followed by distribution of weapons (T. 4 September 2001. ·pp ·55_ 
62) and Witness AGX testified that Colonel Nsengiyum.va spoke in Gisenyi on 7 April 1994 aroUDd 10:00 a.m. saying 
that the President had been killed by cmemies, a~ that there were about two hundred people there ('l'. 11 June 2001, 
pp 34-39). Consequently, the Appeals Chamber conclude$ that~ three witnesses were referring to diffCICJlt event$ and 
no :fiagraut contradiction affecting their credibility could reasonably be dra.wn from these acwunt:s. 
109 T . 16 May 2001, pp 2-3. 
\to .Ibid., pp 5-8, 46; T. 17 June 2001, pp 108, 129-134. 
m Trial Judgement, pan. 825. 
112 Jd. 
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on the morning of 7 April 1994. In the presence of contradictory accounts of the two witnesses,· tli~ 
Trial Chamber would have had to determine which of the accounts was reliable and, in light of 

evidence provided by Witness .ABCl in the Bago~ora et al. case and the fact th.at [REDACTED], 

the Appeals Chamber is not satisfied that a reasonable trier of fact would have found this witness 

credible to the detriment of the account provided by Witness EB. Moreover, Witness ABCl in the 

Bagosora et al. case only testified to the fact that the Appellant was not at [Samvu.ra's] house that 

morning and that there was no meeting there. The me.re fact that [Witness ABCl] did not ~itness or 

hear him ordering the killings does not mean that this could not have occurred. 
113 

The Appeals 

Chamber notes to this extent that Witness EB testified that the .Appellant ordered the killing, through 

a loudspeaker from his vehicle and not during the meeting at Samvura's house.114 Consequently, 
,... .. 

and in light of the findings above concerning Witnesses Alll and AGX, the Appeals Chamber is not 

satisfied that the exclusion of the proffered. additional evidence would amount to a miscamage of 

justice inasmuch as, had it been adduced at trial, it would not have had an impact on the verdict. 

c. Motion of 28 August 2006 

Submissions 9fthe Parties 

35. ~ his Motion of 28 August 2006, the Appellant prays the Appeals Chamber to adplit-.ttie 

Additional Statement of Witness EB purportedly affirming his Recantation Statement ·of April 
2005.115 The Appellant contends that this evidence is credible and relevant to the evid~tl~ 

hearing insofar as, if accepted, it "will clear the doubts of the Prosecution regarding the tru~~ss 

of witness 'EB' [sic] first recanted statement".116 He notes that this evidence, not available at trial, 
could not have been discovered through the exercise of due diligence, and its exclusion would 

amount to a miscarriage of justice. 111 

36. Toe Prosecution does not object to the Motion of 28 Au.gust 2006, acknowledging the 

relevance of the Additional Statement in light of the evidentiary hearing of Witness EB. 11 a 

Nevertheless, it points out that the "agreement on the admissibility of this statement relates on91 to 

the actual adrnissibiJity of the statement, and not to the merits, that is, the reliability or ctetlibilit9, 

, I 

m See Jean de Dteu Kamuhanda v. The Prosecuror, Case No. lCTR•99-S4A-A, Judgement, 19 September ioos, p~ 
158. 
114 At the same time, the Appeals Chamber recalls that the credibility of Witness BB, tbe only witnus to have testified 
to the ordering of the killi.ags by the Appellant (the only relevani pr.rt or Omot Senisbago's Ulstimony that was 
considered conoborated by the Trial Chamber, and thus reliable, referred to the fact that the Appellant "was 
transporting arms in a Ted HHux vehicle on the moming of 7 April 1994" but not the fact lhat he otdered that attack), is 
yet to be re-~esscd on thi:> b~is of bis testinlony at the appeals heming to the subject 0£ his pmported Recantation 
Statemont. 
115 Motion of28 August 2006, preambu).ary para. See also para. 6 supra. 
116 loid., paras 4, 6. 
117 Ibid. , paras S, 7. 
m Response to the Motion of28 August 2006, para. 2. 
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of the contents of the document."119 Furthermore, the Prosecution specifies that the admission of 

copies of the envelopes in which copies of tlus letter were received by the Offic~ of the P,:osccutor 

would be necessary. 120 

Discussion 

3 7. The Appeals Chamber notes that in the Additional Statement, Witness EB pUip0ttedly ~tates 

that the reason for this new statement. is that after having sent his Recantation Statement. he 

"learned that officials from the Office of the Prosecutor who had come to see [him] at [hi.s] hQ~~ '· ' . ..... 
had submitted [his] statement to the [Ttjbunal]" and that "[t]hese employees of the Tribunal, who 

would usually meet (him] at the Ubwnw~ Hotel tn,eatened (him], asking [him] why [he] had written 

to the Tribunal to announce [his) recant.at.ion". Since he was "annoyed by their threats, and in order 

to get rid of them, [he] told them the document containing [his] recantation did not come from 

[him], even though [he] was indeed the one who had written it". According to the Additional 

Statement, Witness EB met the "employees of the Tribunal" once more when they came back to 

confirm that he was the author of the Recantation Statement but had not heard from them ever 

since. Therefore, he decided to write the Additional Statement to confum that both Recantation 

Statements of 5 and 27 April 2005 were written and signed by him. In addition to the infonnation 

contained in Witness EB's purported original Recantation Statement, the Additional Statement 
' . . 

specifies that. contrary to his testunon~ adduced at trial~ he never saw the Appellant on ~~9-.A~l 
.. ' 

1994 in Gisenyi [REDACTED]. According to the Additional Statement, it was well kno~ _t~ the 

inhabitants of Gisenyi that the Appellant was arrested following President Ha.byarimana' s death and 

remained in detention until 9 April 1994; besides, they also knew that the vehicle equipped with 

megaphones belonged to Hassan Gitoki from Commune Rouge and not to the Appellant. Finally, in 

the Additional Statement, Witness EB refers to the Prosecution Witness AFX who allegedly also 

falsely testified against the Appellant. 

38. The Appeals Chamber considers that there is good cause for the late filing of the Motion of 

28 August 2006, since, as explained .above, the Appellant only received a copy the Additional 

Statement in August 2006.121 For the reasons explained in the Ngeze Decision on ,t\dpitio~ .. .. ... 
Evidence,1z2 the Appeals Chamber finds that the proffered evidence was unavailable at_~al. and 
could not be obtained through the exercise of due diligence. The Appeals Chamber is · eq_ually 
satisfied that tho tendered Additional Statement is prima facie credible and relevant. 123 Finally.- the 

Appeals Chamber finds that the Additional Statement could have been a decisive factor in 

119 Ibid., para. 2. 
L:io Ibid., para. 3. 
121 s 6 u para. supra. , 
122 Ngeze Decwon on .Additional Evidence, pa111. 23-
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concluding upon the Appellant's responsibility for the events that took place in Gisenyi ·on 7-9 
April 1994.124 The Appeals Chamber emphasizes that the above findings pertain strictly to the 

admissibility and not to the merits of the proffered additional evidence.12s 

39. For the foregoing reasons, the Appeals Chamber finds that the Additional Statement is 

admissible as additional evidence on appeal. 

D. Motion of 7 September 1006 

40. In its Motion of 7 September 2006, the Prosecution seeks admission of the envelo~~s 

containing copies of the Additional Statement as additional evidence on appeal for the purpos_es of 

the evidentiary hearing of Witness EB.1l
6 The Prosecution claims that the information .bn the 

envelopes is relevant to the issue of detennining the authenticity of tho Additional Statement, 

.. which in tum is felevant to the issues [ of] the oral hearing, whether EB is recanting his trial 

testimony or whether the recantation statement is a product of the Appellant['s] efforts to interfere 

with and suborn the testimony of witnesses" .121 It contends that "[t]he circumstances sunounding 

the receipt and timing of the letter [ ... ] are suspicious and lead to the inference that someone 

associated with the Appellant, or at least someone other than EB, has manufactured the letter.,_ 128 

The Pro~ecution, being in the process of obtaining the originals of the envelopes, also seeks 

evidentiary hearing or whether they should be filed immediately upon their receipt.129 The 
,• . 

Appellant did not respond to the Motion of 7 September 2006. 

41. The Appeals Chamber recalls that, pursuant to Rule 115 of the Rules, motions for additional 

evidence on appeal must be directed towards the contested specific finding of fact made by the Trial 

e Appeals Cham er reca e the Rule itself es not expressly prolu'bit a 

party from seeking the admission of additional evidence to bolster challenged factual findings, in 

123 See ibid., pans 19.-22. 
124 Trial Judgement, paras 836-837. See also Nge.ze Decision on Additional Evidence, paras 24-29. 
125 See Ngeze Decision on Additional Evidence, para. 28. 
126 Motion of7 September 2006, para. 1. 
127 Ibid., pant. 5. 

Ibid., para. 6. According to the Prosecution, several copies of the Additional StatCillenl - and not the originJl - -re 
sent to the offices of the ICTR in A.Nsha and Kil:ali, to two invcstigutOTi and an interpreter from OTP, in !tine 2006, 
.from Tanzania and Rwanda (paras 7-8). According to the Prosecution, "it would Aecm highly improbable that the date 
of the Appellant's Motion [of 19 June 2006], seeking admission of an additional statemont received from Wi~s EB, 
is purely CQincidental with the ma.Hing of th.is letter" (paras 9-11, with reference: to para. 3 of the: Motion of 19 JW1e 
2006, in which the Appellant affirms that "the Prosecutor might have collected or received some material and/or 
statements from witness EB[ ... ]") The Prosecution maintains that the faCl that 1he Additional Statement was allegedly 
written ill December 2005 but ocly posted in June 2006 militates for a coDclusion that Witness EB may ha-ve writte11 it 
undei: so:im: duress or tbat the letttr.1 were manufactured by someone else (para. 11). It add, that it "is suspicious that a 
letter ortin° to come from Witness EB an mdi t on I.Mn in R.wand was mailed from 1'&JlZallia and 
.Rwanda", the only plausible explanation being that someone other than Witness EB -posted several copies ·to several 
persons from several pliice.o; in order to ensure that the letter was received by the Tnlmnal (para. 12). 
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September 2006. The Appeals Chamber proprio motu ADMITS as rebuttal evidence on appeal the 

copies of envelopes annexed to the Motion of 7 September 2006. 

45. The Appeals Chamber INSTRUCTS the Registrar to provide the following material so far 

admitted into evidence on appeal with cor:rosponding exhibit numbers: 

- copy of the typed statement purportedly signed by Witness EB, index numbers 2223A-

2220-A; 

- Forensic Report, including the copy of the purported handwritten Recantation Statement, 

index numbers 3442/A-3413/A; 

, :· : 
- copy of the Additional Statement in Kinyarwanda, as well as its translations into Engli~h 

and French, index numbers 8121A-8112/A 

- copies of envelopes, index numbers 8183/A-8175/A. 

Done in English and French, the English text being authoritative. 

Dated this 27rh day of November 2006, 

At The Hague, The Netherlands. 
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Fausto PocaT 
Presiding Judge 
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